# By-Laws of the Kentucky Retired Teachers Association

#### **ARTICLE I. OFFICERS**

- Section A. The Executive Board of the Association shall consist of the following officers: President, President-Elect, Vice-President, and Immediate Past-President.
- Section B. Duties of the Officers.
- 1. The President
  - a. The President shall be the executive officer of the Association and of the Executive Council. The term of office shall be for (1) year beginning July 1 and ending June 30 each year after the annual convention.
  - b. The President shall carry out rules and regulations and policies as set forth by the Executive Council and the association as well as perform the duties prescribed by the Constitution.
  - c. The President shall make an annual report to the Delegate Assembly.
- 2. The President-Elect
  - a. The President-Elect shall serve as President if for any reason the President is unable to serve.
  - b. The President-Elect shall automatically succeed and be deemed elected without convention vote, to the office of President.
  - c. The President-Elect shall keep in contact with the district chairpersons giving help whenever possible.
  - d. The President-Elect shall assist in formulating programs for the meetings and workshops and perform any other duties which the President or Executive Council may designate.
- 3. The Vice-President
  - a. The Vice-President shall serve as President in the absence of the President and President-Elect.
  - b. The Vice-President shall assist the President at such functions and times as requested by the President or Executive Council.
  - c. The Vice President shall automatically succeed and be deemed elected without convention vote, to the office of President Elect.
- 4. The Immediate Past-President
  - a. Shall serve on the Executive Council.

b. Shall be a member of the Executive Board for one year after serving as President.

## ARTICLE II. EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

- 1. The Executive Council, hereafter referred to as the Council, shall consist of:
  - a. The Executive Board consisting of the President, President-Elect, Vice-President, and the Immediate Past-President. The Executive Board shall act for the Association between meetings of the Council and in addition shall have sole responsibility for any matter expressly delegated to it by the Delegate Assembly or Council
  - b. Fourteen members to be elected at the District fall meeting for a term of two years (or until a successor has been duly elected), to take office on July 1 following the meeting at which they were elected. Council members shall be elected in the following manner:
    The First, Third, Fifth, Central Kentucky East, Upper Kentucky River, Northern Kentucky, Big Sandy, and Central Kentucky West shall elect members for terms beginning in odd number years. The Second, Fourth, Louisville & Jefferson County, Middle Cumberland Upper Cumberland and Eastern Kentucky shall elect Council members for terms beginning in even number years. Council members may serve in succession for no more than two full terms.
  - c. The Executive Council nominees must be voted in by the District they represent and cannot hold any other paid or volunteer state level position.
  - d. All elected members of the Council shall each have full voting privileges.
- 2. The Council shall act for the Association ad interim. The President shall be chairperson of the Council and the Executive Director or designee shall serve as Secretary of said Council. The Council shall meet on the call of the chairperson or written petition to the chairperson signed by a majority of the Council members. A majority of the Council present at a meeting shall constitute a quorum for transacting business.
- 3. The Executive Council shall hold a minimum of two meetings per fiscal year. Meetings can be virtual or in person.
- 4. The Executive Council shall adopt rules and regulations for conducting its meeting and performing its functions in conducting the business of the Association.
- 5. In case of a vacancy, the District with the vacancy, will elect a member to fill the vacancy for the remainder of the term.
- 6. The Executive Council shall have the authority to employ and prescribe the duties of an Executive Director. Other staff members may be employed by the Council upon the recommendation of the Executive Director.
  - a. The Executive Director
    - (1). The Executive Director shall be the Administrative officer of KRTA.
    - (2). The Executive Director or designee shall take the minutes of the KRTA Delegate Assembly and the Executive Council and submit a copy to all parties concerned as soon as possible.

- (3). The Executive Director or designee shall keep on file in the KRTA office all minutes, communications, and committee reports.
- (4). The Executive Director or designee shall serve as the Editor of the KRTA Newsletter.
- (5). The Executive Director shall be evaluated annually by the Executive Council.
- (6). The Executive Director shall present an annual budget and be responsible to see that an annual audit is performed.

#### **ARTICLE III. AFFILIATES**

Section A. District Associations shall be approved by a majority vote of the members of the Executive Council.

#### Section B. Governance Affiliates

- 1. The District Associations shall be organized by counties as follows:
  - a. First District: Ballard, Caldwell, Calloway, Carlisle, Crittenden, Fulton, Graves, Hickman, Livingston, Lyon, Paducah/McCracken, Marshall, and Trigg.
  - b. Second District: Christian, Owensboro/Daviess/McLean, Hancock, Henderson, Hopkins, Union and Webster.
  - c. Third District: Allen, Barren, Butler, Cumberland, Edmonson, Logan, Metcalfe, Monroe, Muhlenberg, Ohio, Simpson, Todd, and Warren.
  - d. Fourth District: Breckinridge, Grayson, Green, Elizabethtown/Hardin/LaRue, Hart, Marion, Meade, Nelson, Taylor, and Washington.
  - e. Fifth District: Bullitt, Carroll, Franklin (Capital City), Henry, Oldham, Owen, Shelby, Spencer and Trimble.
  - f. Louisville and Jefferson County
  - g. Central Kentucky West: Scott, Harrison, Woodford, Fayette/Bourbon (Bluegrass), Jessamine, Anderson, Mercer, Clark, Nicholas/Robertson and Boyle.
  - h. Central Kentucky East: Madison, Garrard, Lincoln, Jackson, Lee, Estill, Powell, Rockcastle, EKU, and Montgomery.
  - i. Eastern District: Boyd, Carter, Elliott, Rowan, Menifee, Bath, Fleming, Lewis, Mason, Greenup, and Morgan.
  - j. Big Sandy District: Lawrence, Magoffin, Johnson, Martin, Floyd, and Pike.
  - k. Middle Cumberland District: Adair, Casey, Clinton, McCreary, Pulaski, Russell, and Wayne.
  - I. Northern District: Boone, Bracken, Campbell, Gallatin, Grant, Kenton, and Pendleton.
  - m. Upper Cumberland District: Bell County/Pineville, Middlesboro Independent, Clay, Harlan, Knox, Laurel and Whitley.

n. Upper Kentucky River District: Breathitt, Knott, Leslie, Letcher, Owsley, Perry, and Wolfe.

#### ARTICLE IV. DELEGATE ASSEMBLY

- 1. The Delegate Assembly shall consist of the following:
  - a. Members of the Executive Council.
  - b. Local Association Delegates: At least one delegate for the first 50 members or any fraction thereof plus one additional delegate for each additional 50 members or major fraction thereof. No local association shall be entitled to more than 10 delegates.
- 2. Local Association Delegates must be a dues-paying member of the Association.
- 3. The local presidents of the local associations shall transmit to the KRTA Executive Director the names of the qualified delegates, not later than March 10 of each year.
- 4. The powers of the Delegate Assembly shall consist of the following:
  - a. Approve the Vice President nominee
  - b. Approve Legislative Agenda
  - c. Receive reports from Executive Director, Standing Committees, and Special Reports
  - d. Vote on recommended amendments to the constitution and bylaws
  - e. Receive annual budget and audit report
  - f. Vote on actions referred from the Executive Council
  - g. If the Delegate Assembly is unable to meet in person, the Executive Board will prepare a plan to complete the objectives and the voting process of the convention.

#### **ARTICLE V. DUES**

The annual membership dues of the Association shall be approved by the Delegate Assembly as recommended by the Executive Council.

#### **ARTICLE VI. VICE PRESIDENT NOMINATION**

- 1. The District will elect a Vice-President nominee using the KRTA Presidential Rotation, by December 15 prior to the Delegate Assembly.
- 2. On or before December 15, before the annual convention, the President shall appoint an interview Committee of five Past Presidents, not more than two from the Executive Council. This committee will meet with the District's nominee to discuss the duties of KRTA officers and present the nominee to the Delegate Assembly.
- 3. If the District has not submitted a nominee, then the rotation continues.
- 4. The President shall present the Vice-President nominee to the Delegate Assembly.
- 5. The newly elected officer shall take office July 1 following the annual meeting.

#### **KRTA PRESIDENTIAL ROTATION**

DISTRICT	YEAR	DISTRICT	Year
Third	2017-18	Jefferson Co	2024-25
Middle Cumberlan	d 2018-19	Eastern	2025-26
Second	2019-20	First	2026-27
Fifth	2020-21	Upper Cumberland	2027-28
Fourth	2021-22	Northern	2028-29
Upper KY River	2022-23	Central KY West	2029-30
Central KY East	2023-24	Big Sandy	2030-31
		Third	2031-32

#### **ARTICLE VII. COMMITTEES**

- Standing Committee Members are elected by Districts. Chairs and Co-Chairs of committees are appointed by the Executive Director and approved by the Executive Council. No person can be a member of more than one state committee. Responsibilities of each committee will be published.
  - a. Legislative
  - b. Membership
  - c. Health & Insurance
- 2. Ad-Hoc Committees Appointed by the President for a specific objective.

### ARTICLE VIII. TERMS OF OFFICE

The term of office for President, President Elect, Vice President shall be one year, except where specified otherwise, or until their successors are elected or appointed.

### **ARTICLE IX. QUORUM**

1. A quorum of the Delegate Assembly shall be a majority of its qualified registered delegates present.

### ARTICLE X. AMENDMENTS

- 1. Amendments can be made by majority vote of the Delegate Assembly provided that the proposed amendment shall have been published in print or electronically at least one month prior to the meeting of the Delegate Assembly.
- 2. If information is disseminated with less than 30 days, two thirds vote of the Delegate Assembly is required.

#### ARTICLE XI. RULES OF PROCEDURE

The most recent edition of *Robert's Rules of Order* shall be the authority governing all matters of procedure not otherwise provided in the Constitution of these Bylaws.

#### ARTICLE XII. FISCAL MEMBERSHIP YEAR

The fiscal year of the Association shall begin July 1 and end June 30 of the following year.

### ARTICLE XIII. ADOPTION AND EFFECTIVE DATE

Upon adoption, By-Laws shall become effective immediately.